30th January 2002 

Lisa Vango

Ofgem

9 Millbank

London

SW1P 3GE

Dear Lisa,

British Gas Trading Limited’s Acquisition of the Gas and Electricity Supply Businesses of Enron Direct Limited – British Gas’s Response

Although we formally notified the Office of Fair Trading about this transaction and set out our views in that submission, having read the Ofgem consultation paper, I thought it would be appropriate to pass you some comments on the specific issues raised, in particular as regards competition in supply and vertical integration.  

Competition in Supply

We welcome your initial view that the acquisition of the gas and electricity supply business of EDL does not appear to raise any significant competition concerns for British Gas.  Against the background of highly competitive gas and electricity I&C supply markets (evidenced by Ofgem’s decision to no longer carry out competitive reviews thereof), we believe that no elements of this transaction operate to change that position in any significant way. The market share increments seen by the acquisition are minimal, indeed the largest increment being witnessed in a market in which British Gas has not historically been particularly active (electricity I&C where the resulting market share is still low (less than 10%)).  

Ofgem notes in its consultation that one result of this acquisition is to remove an active supplier from the I&C electricity supply sector and the I&C gas supply sector.  It must always be remembered that British Gas bought the business from the administrators of EDL following an open bidding process which was pursued at great speed.  The problems witnessed throughout the entire Enron Group suggested that EDL was unlikely to be active for very much longer in any of the identified sectors.  Indeed, as you know, Ofgem was seriously considering appointing a Supplier of Last Resort. The circumstances of the sale were such that the only likely potential purchasers were active suppliers (as far as we were aware the only bidders were all active suppliers) who could easily continue to carry on the business with minimal customer disruption.  It is our view that EDL itself no longer being in the I&C gas and electricity supply sectors will not reduce competitive pressures in either market which are still characterised by established and effective competition operating between a significant number of players.

Vertical Integration

I note that this issue has been raised in the consultation paper but we do not believe it is relevant to the consideration of this acquisition.  It is Centrica policy to source around 20% of its supply requirements from its own equity interest gas fields and power stations to hedge against cost risks and to manage swing factors. 

Since the EDL acquisition involved only customers (a supply business) and no gas production or electricity generation facilities, any vertical integration previously exhibited by the Centrica Group as a whole has actually been diluted rather than concentrated by this transaction (although the effect has been minimal).  We firmly believe that it is altogether irrelevant to consider vertical integration in the context of this consultation.  In addition, in view of the mismatch between generation/production and supply, it is not, in our view, necessary or appropriate to make any licence modifications or seek any assurances in this regard (see comments to 4.4 below). 

Additional Comments

Finally, I have a few comments on some of the statements made in the consultation paper which I propose to cover with reference to the paragraph number of the consultation paper as follows:

2.3
The original letter from British Gas to the OFT about the transaction was dated 19th December 2001.  The OFT then asked for further information which was hand delivered to the OFT on 15th January 2002, not 16th as you state.

4.2. Whilst we are happy with calculations of the respective British Gas and EDL market shares for I&C electricity supply in Great Britain by volume, there appears to be a discrepancy between Ofgem’s and British Gas’ figures for the size of the market when measured by sites.  Based on number of sites, British Gas has calculated its share of this market as a percentage of approximately 2.2 million, while Ofgem has made the calculation based on an overall figure of 3.9 million.  I believe that the discrepancy arises because we have used the figure for number of sites and Ofgem has used a figure taken from the total number of enterprises registered in the UK.  Our figure also compares with the figure given in DTI's “Digest of UK Energy Statistics 2001” which shows the market size in 1999 by sites as 2,198,032.  When using sites, we would therefore be grateful for clarity and guidance as to which is the most appropriate method for defining the size of this market.

4.4
We believe that the consultation paper is misleading in relation to the way the issue of vertical integration is addressed.  This paragraph sets out the figure for the amount of Centrica’s equity gas which is sourced from Morecambe but the consultation paper does not make it clear that Centrica’s total equity gas falls far short of its supply requirements (see comments above re vertical integration).  This mismatch is key to the consideration of vertical integration and underpins our view that there should be no vertical integration issues with this acquisition.

4.7 I am not entirely sure that it is relevant to the evaluation of the merger to consider what will happen to domestic customers supplied under EDL multi-site contracts in the future.  Existing multi-site customers will only have to be reclassified when their contracts come up for expiry or are terminated, and then again this assumes the customers will choose to remain with British Gas.  In any event, any potential increment in British Gas’s domestic customer post-merger would be negligible.

Conclusion

It is our view that the acquisition of the EDL supply business by British Gas does not raise any significant competition concerns in the relevant supply markets and that any consideration of vertical integration is not relevant in the context of this merger appraisal.  We therefore trust that your recommendation to the OFT is that the Secretary of State be advised to approve the merger without referral and without requiring undertakings from British Gas.

If you have any question, please do not hesitate to contact me on 01784 645337 or, in my absence, Nigel Howard on 01784 646034.

Yours sincerely,

Sarah Whittingham

Legal Manager: Competition and Regulatory Affairs
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